
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

OCTOBER 14, 2019 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan – Jake Petrosky, Project Manager with Stewart.

VII. PRESENTATIONS:

1. Electric Territory Expansion - Monty Montsinger and Peter Rant, Pike Engineering (Formerly
PowerServices).

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for residents
to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any other matter
related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of the agenda,
residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on the item. No public
comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the Public Comment period or
as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more
than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no
action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a
future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

1. David Munoz – Request for Reconsideration of Brunch Bill.

2. Debbie Avery - Request for Reconsideration of Brunch Bill.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed by
the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the Consent
Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
 August 19, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes; and
 September 9, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes.

2. Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation of Mahmoud Atiyha/Happy Trail Farms for Tuesday,
November 12, 2019.

3. Schedule a Public Hearing for the Rezoning of Janet Hare and Joan Neitz Property for Tuesday,
November 12, 2019.

4. Approval of Engineering Contracts for Church Street Lift Station Force Main Bores – The Wooten
Company.

5. Approval of Engineering Contract for General Consulting Services – The Wooten Company.



 

X. OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Nobel Canal Bank Stabilization. 

XI. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project - Award of Contract. 

2. Gardner Street parking. 

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 

XV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER. 

XVI. CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(5) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by 
the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, 
which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session 
and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be 
open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public 
body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of a claim, 
judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Acquisition of Real Property.) 

XVII. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

1. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, October 15th @ 7:00 pm in THAR. 
2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, October 21st @ 7:00 pm in THAR. 
3. Halloween and Fall Market: Thursday, October 24th from 4:00 pm – 8:00 pm on Town Market at 252 

Main Street. 
4. Trick or Treat the Trail: Thursday, October 31st from 4:30 pm – 8:00 pm at Winterville Recreation 

Park. 
5. Dedication of Playgrounds: Thursday, October 31st starting at 5:00 pm at Hillcrest Park Playground, 

then proceeding directly to Winterville Recreation Park Playground (approximately 5:30 pm). 
6. Municipal Election: Tuesday, November 5th from 6:30 am – 7:30 pm. 
7. Veteran’s Day: Monday, November 11th, Town Offices Closed. 
8. Veterans Day Event: Monday, November 11th @ 2:00 pm at Winterville Public Safety Building. 
9. Regular Town Council Meeting: Tuesday, November 12th @ 7:00 pm in THAR. 
10. Thanksgiving Holidays: Thursday, November 28th and Friday, November 29th, Town Offices Closed. 
11. Christmas Market, Parade, Tree Lighting, and Council Reception: Saturday, November 23rd from 1:00 

pm – 8:00 pm. 

XVIII. ADJOURN. 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the meeting should notify 
the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director and 

Jake Petrosky, Project Manager with Stewart  

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

Action Requested: Hold a Public Hearing for Adoption of the Plan. 

Attachments: Draft Plan (See link below). 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 10/3/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville has engaged in a year-long development of its Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

During this process, the Planning Department, along with the Consultant team from Stewart and all 

departments of the Town, have reviewed and refined the vision of the Town to provide guidance on land use, 

economic development, recreation, and infrastructure decisions for years to come. The plan includes an 

assessment of the community as well as an updated vision, goals, and recommendations. 

A major component of the planning process was the establishment of a Steering Committee. This committee 

is comprised of 11 people that represent a diverse set of backgrounds, races, ages, genders and areas of 

expertise. The Steering Committee met 5 times over the last year, providing input on community goals, 

concepts and strategies, and reviewing the draft plan. At the fifth and last meeting the Steering Committee 

fully endorsed the plan. 

The Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval to Town Council on September 16, 

2019. 

A copy of the draft plan can be found at the following link: 

https://www.wintervillenc.com/comprehensive-land-use-plan 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approve and Adopt the Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

3

https://www.wintervillenc.com/comprehensive-land-use-plan


 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Monty Montsinger and Peter Rant, 

Pike Engineering (Formerly PowerServices) 

 

Item Section: Presentations 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Town of Winterville New Electric Territory Expansion Cost Estimate Study. 

Action Requested: Acceptance of Study Findings. 

Attachments: None. 

Prepared By: Robert Sutton, Electric Director Date: 10/3/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Representatives of Pike Engineering (formerly PowerServices) were directed to determine the Towns 

projected costs for serving customers in the Towns recently acquired new electric service territory. The new 

service territory was divided into areas based on the likelihood and timeframe of their development. In order 

to assign cost projections to the new areas, assumptions were made including the new areas would develop 

at approximately the same density as existing and construction methods would similarly mirror existing 

infrastructure. 

Staff requested the cost estimate study as the first step in the new territory backbone electric construction 

process. The second step will be the development of construction routes and drawings, field staking, 

development of bid documents and other construction administration tasks. 

Budgetary Impact: Funding for the Cost Estimate Study was appropriated in the FYE 19 budget. 

Additionally, funding for the New Service Territory engineering and construction administration was approved 

in the FYE 20 budget. 

Recommendation: Acceptance of Cost Estimate Study and direct staff to enter contract negotiations with 

Pike Engineering for the Worthington Road to Laurie Ellis New Service Territory Backbone Electric 

Construction Project engineering and construction administration. 

 

4



5



6



7



8



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council Meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 10/2/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp - 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 August 19, 2019 Regular Council meeting, and 

 September 9, 2019 Regular Council meeting. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

9



 
 

Winterville Town Council 
August 19, 2019 – 7:00 PM 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moye gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker noted a deletion to the Agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the corrected 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Tattooing as a Permitted Use in General Business. Economic 
Development Planner Penn gave the following presentation: 
 

10



 
 

 
 

 

11



 
 

 
 

 

12



 
 

 
 

 

13



Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
zoning ordinance text amendment. Debbie Avery, Director, Winterville Chamber of Commerce spoke in 
favor of the proposed amendment. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the zoning ordinance text 
amendment. Ed Reynolds, resident, and Garry Nobles owner of Garry’s Skin Graffix spoke in opposition 
of the amendment. 
 
Mayor Jackson closed the Public Hearing. Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more 
questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
Tattooing Zoning Text Amendment. The motion carried 4-1. Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
Request for Taxicab Franchise from Linangaly Transportation Services. Town Manager Parker 
provided following information: 
 
Ms. Angela Grimes, owner of Linangaly Transportation Services requests to operate a Taxicab 
Franchise in the Town of Winterville. The applicant has submitted her application for approval of the 
certificate of convenience and necessity. The Daily Reflector advertised the Public hearing in the 
August 7, 2019 and August 14, 2019 editions. Shown below is the application: 
 

 

14



 
 

 
 

15



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16



 
 

 
 

17



 
Mr. and Mrs. Grimes explained and outlined their efforts for the proposed Linangaly Transportation 
Services and answered questions from Council. 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
Taxicab Franchise from Linangaly Transportation Services request. Alyassa Hooper and Lucy Anderson 
spoke in favor of the application. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the Taxicab Franchise from Linangaly 
Transportation Services request. Ed Reynolds, Claude Mereau, David Pearce, Betty Forrest, Timothy 
Forrest, and Jamee Dickens spoke in opposition of the application. 
 
Mayor Jackson closed the Public Hearing. Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more 
questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to decline the Taxicab 
Franchise Application from Linangaly Transportation Services. The motion carried 3-2. 
Councilwoman Roberson and Councilman Moye opposed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
1. Dr. Glenn E. Johnson, DCRC 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
1. Council Meeting Minutes: 

 May 28, 2019 Budget Work Session meeting; 
 May 29, 2019 Budget Work Session meeting; 
 June 3, 2019 Budget Public Hearing meeting; 
 June 10, 2019 Regular Council meeting; and 
 June 24, 2019 Special Council meeting. 

2. Holly Grove Section 1 Annexation: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation. 
3. Ange Plaza Lot 22 Annexation: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation. 
4. Budget Amendment 2019-2020-01. 
5. Tax Settlement 2019-2020. 
6. Charge the tax collector with collection of the 2019-2020 tax levy. 
7. Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee Items: 

 Parade Permit Application and Fee Exemption; 
 Recreation Park Parking Lot Use and Traffic Pattern Changes; 
 Suspend Winterville Recreation Park Hours Limitation; 
 Placement of Signs and Banners; and 
 Usage of the Parks and Recreation Bathroom Facilities. 

8. Parking Schedule on West Railroad Street Ordinance Amendment 19-O-081. 
9. Stop Signs and Speed Limits on Town Streets Ordinance Amendment 19-O-082 

18



Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the consent 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
1. Beacon Drive Speed Limit Ordinance 19-O-083: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director gave the 

following comments: 
 
While completing an update to the Town’s Speed Limits Ordinances, staff discovered that Beacon Drive 
had 35 mph speed limit signs installed, however the ordinance stated the speed limit as 25 mph. The 
Town Council adopted Ordinance 07-O-282 on June 11, 2007, which established a speed limit of 25 mph 
on Beacon Drive. The Public Works Department has coordinated with the Police Department and 
recommends that the Ordinance adopting the speed limit as 25 mph be rescinded such that the speed 
limit will revert back to 35 mph. Beacon Drive is not a residential street, but rather acts as a thoroughfare 
between Railroad Street, Vernon White Road, and Highway 11 (Memorial Drive). The Police Department 
believes they can safely enact a speed limit of 35 mph. NC General Statute 20-141(b) establishes a 
speed limit of 35 mph inside the corporate limits of Winterville for all vehicles unless specifically 
established, Therefore simply rescinding the existing ordinance of 25 mph will allow the Police 
Department to enforce a speed limit of 35 mph. 

19



 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
Ordinance 19-O-083 setting the speed limit on Beacon Drive at 35 mph. The motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
2. Public Works Updated Capital Improvement Plan: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director gave the 

following comments: 
 
The Public Works Director revised and updated the Town’s Public Works Capital Improvement Plan. This 
is a requirement to receive points towards low interest loans for capital improvement projects such as the 
sewer rehab project. The Council must adopt the plan for acceptance by the reviewing agency. Approving 
this plan does not require the Town to complete the projects but does help staff and council budget for 
future improvements and projects. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the Public 
Works Updated Capital Improvement Plan. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

20



3. 2019 SRF Authorizing Resolution 19-R-081: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director gave the 
following comments: 

 
The NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) will be 
accepting applications for water and sewer improvement projects for the fall 2019 round. The Town 
applied for funding through the same program this spring, and offered 0% financing for 100% of the 
proposed project. After the funding request was submitted, staff and the Towns Engineer came to the 
conclusion that a bar screen will need to be added to the Church Street Lift Station, which was not 
included in the funding application. Rags and other debris are constantly causing issues with the 
pumps, leading to costly repairs. The Towns application would score better if an updated CIP and that 
the addition of the CIP would increase the chances of the Town receiving grant money or principal 
forgiveness funding in addition to low or zero interest loans. It is staff’s intent to submit a revised 
application that includes the updated CIP. The application will request funding in the amount of 
$1,940,000 for areas targeted in the recently developed and adopted Sanitary Sewer Asset 
Management Plan/Capital Improvements Plan as well as the bar screen for Church Street Lift Station. 
The project will include all of the work originally submitted for funding, including rehabilitation work at 
the Chapman Street Lift Station and electrical improvements at both the Robinson Heights Lift Station 
and Winterville Crossing Lift Station. Applications are due September 30, 2019 with Notice of Funding 
anticipated to occur in December 2019. If approved for funding, Council will have the opportunity to 
decide whether to accept the loan offer. 
 

 

21



 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the SRF 
resolution #19-R-081. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
4. 2018 Sidewalk Improvements Project Change Order #1: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director gave 

the following comments: 
 
The Contractor for the 2018 Sidewalk Improvements Project continues working on the project. After the 
Contractor mobilized and started working staff realized that there was some additional clearing that would 
need to be performed on the Town owned property across Laurie Ellis Rd. from the Mellon Downs S/D. 
Staff also found approximately 180 linear feet of curb and gutter in Coopers Point that needed to be 
replaced immediately. Most of the curb and gutter appears to be installed originally using inferior concrete 
mixture. Additionally, the Americans with Disabilities Act requires truncated domes on existing handicap 
to bring them into compliance. Other minor items such as an additional culvert over a ditch and relocating 
another culvert are also included in this change order. Staff recommends approving this change order for 
$13,386.00 for the additional work. 

22



 
 

23



 
 

24



 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve Sidewalk 
Change Order #1. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station Cost Participation: Staff commented. 
 
The Eli’s Ridge Subdivision development will require the construction of a new lift station within the 
subdivision to provide gravity sewer service to the subdivision. The Eli’s Ridge lift station will pump to 
the Town’s new regional lift station off Old Tar Road. Staff has coordinated with the Engineer for the 
Eli’s Ridge development to upgrade the station to accommodate future growth east of Fork Swamp 
Canal to County Home Road. By investing in this lift station now, the Town could avoid the need for 
additional lift stations in the future, east of the canal. Lift stations are a burden on the Town and its staff, 
both financially and time wise. This investment would also provide access to sewer for all of the 
properties east of the canal, which could spur further development in the Worthington Road corridor. 
Based on the Engineers calculations, the Eli’s Ridge development would necessitate a 6-foot diameter 
wet well and a 6-inch diameter force main. The Engineer has recommended upgrading the wet well to a 
10-foot diameter well and upgrading the force main to an 8-inch diameter main to accommodate this 
future growth. The Engineer has estimated the cost difference for the subdivision only and the cost to 
accommodate future growth at approximately $185,000. This number is an estimate only, and the 
actual cost share would be the actual bids received. If approved, staff recommends that the Town 

25



borrow the funds necessary for this cost share from itself and pay the money back over a 5-year period. 
In doing so, staff believes that it can absorb this annual estimated cost of approximately $37,000 with 
its current revenue stream. Staff is also investigating a possible cost share opportunity with Christ 
Covenant School that would allow a gravity sewer main extension from the new Regional Lift Station off 
Old Tar Road to the existing Winterville Crossing Lift Station. This would allow for the Winterville 
Crossing Lift Station to be abandoned, and if this project comes to fruition, staff would recommend that 
the same funding mechanism be implemented for that cost share as well 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Eli’s Ridge Cost Participation plan. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
2. School Resource Officer Contract FY 2019-2020: Police Chief Willhite gave the following comments: 
 
Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville enter into a contract to supply a School 
Resource Officer (SRO) in the county schools in our jurisdiction. The county has proposed a one-year 
contract that will pay the officers salary and benefits ($64,340.34) and the Town of Winterville is 
responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle and training. The primary assignment for this officer is 
A.G. Cox Middle School. When needed and prudent, the officer will frequent W.H. Robinson Elementary 
as well as Creekside Elementary. The County will make 12 monthly installments to the Town to 
reimburse the salary and benefits cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the county, this contract renewal 
is annual to address changes in salary or details. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
SRO Contract. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
3. Villa Grande, Phase One, Section B – Final Plat.: Economic Development Planner Penn gave the 

following presentation: 
 

 
 

26



 
 

Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Villa Grande, Phase One, Section B – Final Plat. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
4. Happy Trails – Minor Subdivision Final Plat.: Economic Development Planner Penn gave the following 

presentation: 
 

 
 

27



 
 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the Happy 
Trails – Minor Subdivision Final Plat. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
5. Planning and Zoning Board Appointment - Alternate Member.: Economic Development Planner 

Penn gave the following presentation: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Board consists of ten (10) regular members and two (2) alternate members. 
There is currently a Vacant Alternate position available. Term will expire on 6/30/2022 
 
The Town Clerk currently has three (3) applications on file requesting for appointment to the Planning 
and Zoning Board. The applicants are as follows (listed in order of receipt): 

 Garrett Kilian (Received 4/30/19 / P & Z is 2nd priority). 

 Joseph Pierce (Received 5/17/19 / P & Z is 1st priority). 

 Tucker Moore (Received 5/20/19 / P & Z is 1st priority). 
 
Joseph Pierce and Tucker Moore received nomination for Alternate Member position on the 
Planning and Zoning Board. Councilman Hines voted for Joseph Pierce. Mayor Pro Tem Smith, 
Councilman Moore, Councilwoman Roberson, and Councilman Moye voted for Tucker Moore. 
Tucker Moore appointed as an Alternate Member to the Planning and Zoning Board, 4-1. 

28



OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Councilman Moore asked staff look into 12 drainage areas around Town. 
 
Staff directed to contact Legislators concerning speed limit on Laurie Ellis Road. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
1. Updates on projects currently underway:  
 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 

 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnson noted that the Jackie Robinson league approached the Town to 
join play. He noted it would add to travel, operational impacts, and costs. Want direction from Council on 
how to proceed. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to decline request 
from Jackie Robinson League and any other league to join the Town’s program. The motion 
carried, 3-2. Councilman Moye and Councilwoman Roberson opposed. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: Reminded everyone there is a closed session tonight. The Watermelon Festival is 
this week with opening ceremony at 6:15 Thursday. 
 
Councilman Moore: None. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Stated glad that Boyd Street improvements are completed. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Smith: None. 
 
Councilman Moye: Thanks for opportunity to attend ElectriCities conference. 
 
Councilman Hines: None. 
 
Mayor Jackson: Shared that a citizen enjoyed the Police Chief Willhite interview. 
 
  

29



ANNOUNCEMENTS: Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements 
 
1. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, August 20, 2019 at 7 pm. (Cancelled) 
2. 2019 Winterville Watermelon Festival: August 22 – 25, 2019. 
3. Town Office closed on Monday, September 2, 2019 for Labor Day Holiday. 
4. Town Council Meeting: Monday, September 9, 2019 at 7 pm in Town Hall Assembly Room. 
5. Special General Election: Tuesday, September 10, 2019. 
6. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, September 16, 2019 at 7 pm in Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
7. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, September 17, 2019 at 7 pm in Town Hall Assembly Room. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to enter into 
Closed Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Council entered into Closed Session at 9:47 
pm. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(5): 
To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the 
attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby 
acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session and nothing 
herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be open 
merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public 
body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of 
a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Acquisition of Real 
Property.). 

 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to end Closed Session. 
Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moore to return to open 
session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to 
adjourn meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 10:15 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 14th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

30



 
 

Winterville Town Council 
September 9, 2019 – 7:00 PM 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman (absent) 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Smith gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the agenda. 
The motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES: 
 
Police Chief Willhite recognized the following new Police Officers” 
 
1. Darren Anderson, Police Office Trainee, Police Department 
2. Chelsea Farrar, Police Officer, Police Department 
3. Patrick Fee, Police Officer, Police Department 

31



4. Jordan Fuquay, Police Officer, Police Department 
5. Donovan Wilson, Police Officer, Police Department 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
1. Holly Grove Section 1 Annexation - Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

32



 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or in 
opposition to the annexation request. No one spoke. Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing closed. 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Holly Grove Section 1 Annexation request. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
2. Ange Plaza Lot 22 Annexation - Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 

 

33



 

 
 

 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor or in 
opposition to the annexation request. No one spoke. Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing closed. 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Ange Plaza Lot 22 Annexation request. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

34



PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
No one spoke. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 
1. Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation for Mahmoud Atiyha/Happy Trail 

Farms. 
2. Schedule a Public Hearing for Adoption of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for October 14, 2019. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
consent agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
1. SRF Loan Application – Decline Loan Offer – Sanitary Sewer Pump Stations Rehabilitation: Public 

Works Director Welborn provided the following information: 
 
The Town applied for funding through the NCDEQ Division of Water Infrastructure Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund this spring for a Pump Stations Improvements Project, and offered 0% financing for 100% 
of the proposed project. The loan offer did not include any principal forgiveness or grant money. After the 
funding request was submitted, staff and the Town’s Engineer also concluded that a bar screen will need 
to be added to the Church Street Lift Station, which was not included in the funding application. Rags 
and other debris are constantly causing issues with the pumps, leading to costly repairs. Staff advised 
that the Town’s application would score better with an updated CIP and that the addition of the CIP would 
increase the chances of the Town receiving grant money or principal forgiveness funding in addition to 
low or zero interest loans. Staff has since revised the project application and cost estimate to include the 
Church Street Bar Screen, and adopted a revised Capital Improvement Plan to get the extra points on 
the project application. Staff will submit a revised application in the fall of 2019 with the hopes of receiving 
this grant money and therefore recommends declining the current loan offer from NCDEQ. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to decline the 
Current Loan Offer for the SRF Loan Application. The motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
2. Community Day – Change of date for Community Day event to March/April: Police Chief Willhite 

provided the following information: 
 
Due to several events (Watermelon Festival, Hurricane and other parks and recreation events) and 
considering that, the Community Day coordination has been minimal, staff would recommend that the 
Community Day event be coordinated with the Town Easter Egg hunt on March 28, 2020. The 
Community Day coordinator advised of this possibility, has given positive feedback, and is awaiting the 
decision and then coordination with the Police Department. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
item. The motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Ordinance Amendment – 19-O-091 for Yard Waste in Streets: Public Works Director Welborn 

provided the following information: 
 

35



Public Works Department staff has noticed a recent increase in incidents where residents and contractors 
are discharging yard waste including grass and leaves in the streets. The Town does not currently have 
an ordinance that specifically prohibits discharging of grass into Town streets. Staff proposes to modify 
Ordinance 98.003 – Tree Trimmings in the General Regulations Ordinances to prohibit discharging or 
depositing any yard debris in the streets. 
 

 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve 
Ordinance 19-O-091 Yard Waste. The motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

2. Veterans Affairs Greenville Health Care Center request for use of Winterville Operations Center Training 
Room: Parks and Recreation Director Johnston provided the following information: 
 
The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) Greenville Health Care Center is requesting use of the 
Winterville Operations Center Training Room (OCTR). Request made with the intention of utilizing the 
OCTR for VA Tai Chi Classes two times per week. Class participants would be veterans registered in 
the VA system. The VA is requesting that use of the OCTR be a donation (no charge for use of facility). 
Brett Jacobs, Therapy Supervisor, with the VA Greenville Health Care Center is present to discuss the 
VA request and answer any questions. Town Attorney Lassiter is reviewing the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) for use of the facility. 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the use 
of the Winterville Operations Center Training Room by the VA after review of the MOU by the 
Town Attorney. The motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

36



3. 2018 Sidewalk Improvements Project – Dixie Queen Parking Lot: Public Works Director provided the 
following information: 

 
Staff is requesting Council direction regarding a sidewalk easement to allow completion of the downtown 
portion of the 2018 Sidewalk Improvements Project. Conflict arose near the Dixie Queen when the 
sidewalk encroached on private property. Property owner has been unwilling to negotiate a settlement. 
 
Councilman Moore requested to abstain due to relationship with party. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
Councilman Moore’s abstention. The motion carried unanimously, 3-0. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith, seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to authorize staff 
to negotiate a settlement, and should a settlement not reachable, authorized condemnation of 
the property. The motion carried unanimously, 3-0. 
 
4. Discussion of Drainage Areas (12) – (Councilman Moore): Public Works Director Welborn 

commented: 
 

Councilman Moore noted that citizens continue to question drainage problems. Town Manager Parker 

discussed revenue stream and ability to taking over backyard drainage areas Also; many more than 12 

areas exist. Public Works Director Welborn noted that numerous drains do not go thru the town system. 

Councilman Moore related a small area near his house. Public Works Director Welborn said that presently 

we maintain drains on Town property. Town Manager Parker noted this will continue to be a problem, 

and will do as council directs. Staff will continue to investigate opportunities to address drainage issues 

and funding sources. 

 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
None 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 

 
Public Works Director Welborn reported that Hurricane Dorian damage limited, limbs picked up today 
for 11 hours, progressing to completion. Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked about mosquito truck status. 
Electric Director Sutton noted the truck would roll regularly. He also stated the only electrical issue 
during Hurricane Dorian was one blown fuse. 

37



 
Public Works Director Welborn noted that the Chapman Street Project was out to bid He stated that the 
2018 sewer rehabilitation design would be messy. Church Street pump station rehabilitation bids 
accepted. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson asked about the bank stabilization. Public Works Director Welborn noted that 
upstream and downstream not the entire length and easements acquired. Town Manager Parker noted 
no funding source for additional work and permits. Public Works Director Welborn said existing work 
consists of cast in place construction. Councilman Moye stated have been begging for years. 
Councilwoman Roberson said asking a long time. Councilman Moye asked could we do it at this time. 
Councilwoman Roberson asked are funds available Town Manager Parker said funding not available in 
house. Assistant Town Manager Williams said additional work would come under a separate and 
different permit. Public Works Director Welborn said Railroad Street is in dire need with sinkholes. 
Nobel Canal was the large study area. Assistant Town Manager Williams said many different areas in 
need, extra easements will make it easier to stabilize, and some work will make the situation worse. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Williams to stabilize banks would investigate other funding sources. 
Councilwoman Roberson said Magnolia Ridge completed, others see that and Nobel Canal not done. 
Assistant Town Manager Williams noted that a non-blue line ditch, requirements less. We have studied 
and can dig in and look for ways. Town Manager Parker stated staff would investigate and be back with 
additional information. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked about unpaved strips. Public Works Director Welborn said unpaved areas listed 
and completed soon. 
 
Councilman Moore asked about Old Tar Road stakes. Public Works Director Welborn noted since 
project delayed by DOT, owners could pull up. 
 
Planning Director Jones noted Comprehensive Land Use Plan received today, will get copies to 
Council. 
 
Councilman Moye asked about Minimum Housing process. Town Manager Parker stated cases 
underway and on radar, will send list, Police checking on cars. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked about fence problems. Town Manager Parker said staff would check 
ordinance and get back with council concerning permits. Planning Director Jones noted not always 
required to get permit, there is no cost, there are conditions required. It is a good idea to owners check 
with the Planning Department. 
 
Electric Director Sutton noted the Tar Road Widening Project on hold. Met with new engineers, Pike, 
concerning new territory areas. Town Manager Parker said Pike would be here next month to discuss 
new territory and long term. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston discussed Fork Swamp project. Town Manager Parker 
discussed Town Common Plan. Electric Director Sutton noted lights on the Walking Trail are working. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: No report, many thanks for all the assistance with the Watermelon Festival. 
 
Councilman Moore: Asked to invite the Watermelon Festival invited to the Town Appreciation Dinner. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Thanks to Town staff during Hurricane Dorian. 
 

38



Mayor Pro-Tem Smith: Thanks to Town staff during Hurricane Dorian and the Watermelon Festival. 
 
Councilman Moye: Thanks to Town staff for Hurricane Dorian response. The storm could have been 
much worse. Thanks for the ElectriCities Conference and opportunity to learn to make Town better. 
 
Manager Parker: Thanks to Town staff during Hurricane Dorian. Staff is the best out there every day. 
 
Mayor Jackson: Echo the remarks of the others. Was in contact with Town Manager Parker during 
Hurricane Dorian. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements 
 
1. Special General Election: Tuesday, September 10, 2019. 
2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, September 16, 2019 at 7 pm in Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, September 17, 2019 at 7 pm in Town Hall Assembly Room. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to 
adjourn regular meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:34 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 14th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

39



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Annexation – Mahmoud Atiyha/Happy Trail Farms. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for Annexation on November 12, 2019. 

Attachments: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Certificate of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 9/30/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner (Mahmoud Atiyha) of Parcel 24482 is applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

 

Holly Grove, Section 1: 

Location: Church Street Ext. south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

Size: 1 Lot, 1.87 Acres. 

Zoned: GB. 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (9/9/19). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (10/14/19). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (11/12/19). 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Schedule the Public Hearing. 

 

40



41



42



43



44



45



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Janet Hare and Joan Neitz Property – Rezoning Request. 

Action Requested: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Rezoning Request for November 12, 2019. 

Attachments: Rezoning and Conditional Zoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification 

to Adjacent Property Owners. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 10/3/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Rocky Russell Development, LLC. 

Location: Reedy Branch Road south of its intersection with Davenport Farm Road. 

Parcel Number: 13889. 

Site Data: 19.74 Acres. 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

Proposed Zoning District: R-6 CUD. 

Reason for zoning change: To allow development of a subdivision with construction of duplex residences 

with the following conditions: 

1. Minimum lot dimensions 82’ wide X 110’ deep (9,020 square foot lots). 

2. One and two story duplexes. 

3. Brick or stone will be placed on part of front elevation. Vinyl on sides/rear/front partial. 

4. 70% with single car garages. 

5. Building square footage will not be less than 1100 square feet per side. 

6. A HOA will be established and the HOA will maintain all lawns (fenced in areas to be maintained by 

homeowner), and entrance to areas to subdivision. 

 

 Planning and Zoning Board recommended denial of the request. 

 Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on August 28, 2019. 

 Notification was posted on the site on August 28, 2019. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule the Public Hearing for the Rezoning Request. 

 

46



47



48



49



50



51



Town of Winterville 
Planning and Zoning 

Rezoning Case 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Planning and Zoning Board will meet 

on Monday, September 16, 2019 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad 

Street, in order to review the following rezoning: 

 

 A proposal to rezone Parcel 13889 as shown on the attached map, owned by Janet Hare 

and Joan Neitz from Agricultural-Residential (AR) to R-6 CD zoning district. The R-6 

Residential District is a quiet, relatively high-density neighborhood consisting of single-family 

and two-family dwellings along with limited home occupations and private and public 

community uses.  The proposed conditions for the rezoning are as follows:  

 

1. Minimum lot dimensions:  82’ width X 110’ deep.  

2. One and two story duplexes. 

3. Brick or stone will be placed on part of front part of elevation.  Vinyl on sides/rear/front 

partial. 

4. 70% with single car garages. 

5. Building square footage will not be less than 1100 sq ft per side. 

6. A homeowner association will be established and the homeowner association will 

maintain all lawns (areas of home closed with a fence will be maintained by 

homeowner) and entrance areas to subdivision. 

 

Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office 

in the Town Tall and are available for public inspection during normal business hours (8:00 am 

to 5:00 pm) Monday through Friday.  

 

Persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to speak either for or against the requested 

rezoning are invited to be present and will be given the opportunity to be heard.  For further 

information, contact the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 

52



53



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works 
Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Engineering Contracts for Church Street Lift Station Force Main Bores. 

Action Requested: Approval of Task Orders 27 & 28 with The Wooten Company. 

Attachments: Engineering Proposals. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 10/7/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff requests approval to execute Engineering Task Orders 27 & 28 with The Wooten Company for 

engineering services related to the Church Street Lift Station Force Main Replacement Projects. Task Order 

27 in the amount of $33,250.00 will cover survey, engineering design, easement mapping, construction 

administration, and construction inspection for the force main replacement under Highway 11. The existing 

force main has experienced failures in the past, and the State has mandated that it be replaced in order to 

prevent future sanitary sewer overflows. The replacement force main will also be increased in size to allow 

for future growth within the Town of Winterville. 

Task Order 28 is proposed to cover construction administration and construction inspection services for the 

CSX Railroad force main crossing. Task Order 28 is in the amount of $16,000.00. The Contract for the 

construction of this portion of force main has already been executed and staff hopes to get started within the 

next 30 days. 

Budgetary Impact: The approved budget for this fiscal year included the money necessary for task order 27 

– Highway 11 force main bore. The approved engineering budget also included approximately half of the 

money necessary for task order 28 – CSX Railroad bore. The remaining funds necessary for task order 28 

will be transferred from other line items within the approved sanitary sewer budget. 

Recommendation: Approval of Engineering contracts with The Wooten Company. 

 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town 
Manager 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Wooten Company - General Consulting Services – Engineering. 

Action Requested: Approval of Request. 

Attachments: Engineering Services Agreement. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 10/8/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

In 2012, Council entered into an agreement with the Wooten Company for general consulting services 

related to engineering on a case-by-case basis for smaller projects without a defined scope of work. This 

general services contract is renewed annually. The services provided by Wooten Company through the 

subject agreement include but are not limited to development plan review. The attached agreement will 

extend the general consulting services contract through June 30, 2019. 

Budgetary Impact: Estimated beginning contract amount $41,500. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of contract with Wooten Co. for general consulting services. 

 

62



63



64



65



66



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town 
Manager 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Nobel Canal Bank Stabilization. 

Action Requested: NA. 

Attachments: None. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 10/8/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff will present and discuss potential funding sources and associated timelines/criteria for streambank 

stabilization of Nobel Canal. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

67



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works 
Director 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project. 

Action Requested: Award of Contract to Chatham Civil Contracting, LLC. 

Attachments: Proposed Contract, Certified Bid Tab, Letter of Recommendation. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 10/4/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/8/2019  FD  TM 10/8/2019  Final tlp – 10/8/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town received a grant in 2017 for the replacement of the Chapman Street Culvert due in part to the 

existing culvert being undersized and contributing to flooding issues upstream. There are also structural 

integrity issues with the existing culvert as sinkholes are present in the roadway due to leaks in the existing 

pipe. The grant was in the amount of $1,094,000.00. Engineering design fees including inspection and 

construction administration services totaled $157,940.00, leaving approximately $936,000.00 for 

construction. Bids were opened on Thursday October 3, 2019, with the lowest responsible bidder being 

Chatham Civil Contracting, LLC with a low base bid of $865,142.50. The base bid included replacing the 

existing culvert with a new, cast in place concrete box culvert. This box culvert is designed to carry the 25 

year storm, whereas the existing pipes were installed with reverse grade and do not adequately convey the 

10 year storm. 

Budgetary Impact: 100% of this project including all engineering fees and construction costs will be 

covered by the grant that the Town received. 

Recommendation: Award of contract to Chatham Civil Contracting, LLC. 

 

68



 

Sealed bids will be received by the TOWN OF WINTERVILLE in the Winterville Town Hall 
located at   2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, on Thursday, October 3, 2019 until 
2:00 PM local time, and immediately thereafter publicly opened and read, for constructing 
the Chapman Street Culvert Replacement:

Bids must be submitted on the complete project. Bids must be enclosed in a sealed envelope, 
addressed to the attention of Kristin Godley – Purchasing Manager, Town of Winterville, 
Finance Department, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590 and the outside of  the 
envelope must be marked “Chapman Street Culvert Bid Package”. All bids must be made on 
blank forms provided and included in the contract documents as described in the “Instructions 
to Bidders”.

Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check, drawn on a bank or trust company 
authorized to do business in North Carolina, payable to the TOWN OF WINTERVILLE in an 
amount at least equal to five percent (5%) of the total amount of the bid, as a guarantee that a 
contract will be entered into. In lieu of a certified check, the Bidder may submit a bid bond in 
the form prescribed in G.S. 143 129 as amended by Chapter 1104 of the Public Laws of 1951.

Contractors are notified that North Carolina G.S. 87 relating to licensing of contractors will 
be observed in receiving bids and awarding contracts.

In accordance with the Minority Participation Goals, potential prime Contractor(s), should 
attend the Pre-Bid Conference to be held in the Town of Winterville Operations Center at 
2936 Church Street Extension, Winterville, NC 28590 on Wednesday, September 18, 2019 at 
2:00 PM local time.

The project consists of the replacement of two existing 60” storm drainage pipes with 237 LF 
of dual 6’x5’ reinforced concrete box culverts with endwalls, as well as improvements to the 
adjacent curb and gutter, roadway, storm drain system, and utilities.

Plans and specifications can be requested electronically by contacting the office of the engineer, 
Freese and Nichols, Inc. at 919-582-5855, or by emailing Sam Beavans at Sam.Beavans@freese.
com. All questions shall be submitted to Sam Beavans via email by noon on September 25, 
2019 and any addenda will be sent to the plan holder list maintained by the engineer.

The right is reserved to reject any or all bids, to waive informalities, and to award contract or 
contracts which, in the opinion of the Owner, appear to be in its best interest.

Signed: Mr. Travis Welborn, PE
Public Works Director
Town of Winterville, NC
2571 Railroad Street
Winterville, NC 28590

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS - TOWN OF WINTERVILLE
CHAPMAN STREET CULVERT REPLACEMENT

WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

69



70



71



 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: October 14, 2019 

Presenter: Ryan Willhite, Chief of Police 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Gardners Street parking. 

Action Requested: Restrict parking on the North side of Gardners Street. 

Attachments: NA. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 10/9/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 10/9/2019  FD        TM 10/09/2019   Final tlp – 10/9/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Gardners Street is not passable by any vehicle, regardless of size, if vehicles are parked on both sides of the 

street. Although parking is not common on the North side of the street, it would be legal and does sometimes 

occurs. 

Budgetary Impact: Marking/painting of the curb and signage.  

Recommendation: Approval of request. 

 

72


	00-Agenda 10142019 Finalv2
	06-1-a-Abstract_Comprehensive Land Use Planv2
	07-1-a-Abstract_Electric_Territory_Expansionv2
	08-1-a-David Munoz-Brunch Bill
	08-1-b-David Munoz-Brunch Bill-letter
	08-1-c-Senate Bill 155-Brunch Bill
	08-1-d-Debbie Avery-Brunch Bill
	09-1-a-Abstract-Meeting Minutesv2
	09-1-b-Regular Meeting Minutes 08192019 Draft Final
	09-1-c-Regular Meeting Minutes 09092019 Draft Finalv2
	09-2-a-Abstract_Happy_Trail_Farms_Annexv2
	09-2-b-Petition_Happy_Trail_Farms_Annex
	09-2-c-Map_Happy_Trail_Farms_Annex
	09-2-d-Legal_Decript_Happy_Trail_Farms_Annex
	09-2-e-Cert_Suff_Happy_Trail_Farms_Annex
	09-3-a-Abstract_Hare_Neitz_Rezoningv2
	09-3-b-Application_Hare_Neitz_Rezoning
	09-3-c-Map_Hare_Neitz_Rezoning
	09-3-d-Notifications_Hare_Neitz_Rezoning
	09-3-e-Legal Description_Hare_Neitz_Rezoning
	09-4-a-Abstract_Wooten_Force_Main_Engineerv2
	09-4-b-Wooten_TO_#27_Hwy11_Forcemain
	09-4-c-Wooten_TO_#28_CSX_Crossing
	09-5-a-Abstract-Wooten_General_Consult_Engineerv2
	09-5-b-Wooten TO #26-General Services Contract
	10-1-a-Abstract_Nobel_Canal_Updatev2
	11-1-a-Abstract_Chapman_St_Project_Awardv2
	11-1-b-Advertisement
	11-1-c-Award Recommendation Letter and Bid Tab
	Chapman Street Award Recommendation Letter

	11-2-a-Abstract-Gardners Street



